
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
​

August 26, 2025 ​     1:00 P.M.  
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Ave 

Sheboygan WI 53081 
Room 302 

 
 
​ ​ ​ ​ Remote Access: meet.google.com/iji-jpys-nxp 
​ ​ ​ ​ Meeting ID: 1 573-568-8312 
​ ​ ​ ​ Virtual:  462 909 985# 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Committee may be appearing remotely.  
 

*AGENDA* 
 
 
Call to Order​
 
Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
 
Correspondence 
 
Approval of Minutes for the July 22, 2025 Executive Committee Meeting 
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. __ (2025/26) Re: Amending Chapter 1 - County Organization and 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Consideration of Resolution No. 08 - Delegating the Authority to Enter into Settlement Agreements 
with Opioid Defendants to the Sheboygan County Administrator and Corporation Counsel 
 
Consideration of Resolution No. 09 - 2026 Five-Year Capital Plan 
 
Consideration of Resolution No. 10 - Supporting the Establishment of an Agricultural Enterprise Area 
(AEA) within the Town of Plymouth 
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 09 - Amending Section 1.17 of the Sheboygan County Code-Updating 
Sheboygan County's Mission, Vision, and Core Values 
 
Consideration of 2026 County Administrator's Office Budget 
 
Consideration of 2026 County Board Budget 
 
Consideration of 2nd Quarter Variance Reports 
 
County Administrator’s Report 
(The County Administrator’s Report is a summary of key activities. No action will be taken by the 
Executive Committee resulting from the report, unless it is a specific item on the agenda.) 

Posted on 8/22/2025 at 11:00am 
 

http://meet.google.com/iji-jpys-nxp


 
Consideration and Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings/Functions  
 
Review and Approve Vouchers 
 
Next Meeting Date: To Be Determined 
​ ​ ​  
Adjournment 
 
 
 
Prepared by:​ ​  
 
Michelle Sifuentes​ Keith Abler 
Recording Secretary​ Committee Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or any of its committees may be present at this meeting, and it is likely that a 
majority of the Finance committee will be present at this meeting to listen, observe and participate. If a majority of any such body is present, 
their presence constitutes a “meeting” under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 
Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting. 
 
If listed as an agenda item, the “Administrator’s Report” is a summary of key activities for the previous month and planned for upcoming 
months including performance evaluations, liaison committee issues and County Board issues.  No action will be taken by the Executive 
committee resulting from the report unless it is a specific item on the agenda.  
 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify the County Board Chairman/County Administrator’s 
Office at 920-459-3103 prior to the meeting so that accommodations may be arranged. 

Posted on 8/22/2025 at 11:00am 
 



 

 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Ave 

Sheboygan, WI 53081 
Room 302 

 
 
July 22, 2025​ Called to Order: 1:00 PM​ Adjourned: 1:20 PM 

 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:        In Person: Keith Abler, William Goehring, Kathleen Donovan and 

Edward Procek 
​ Remote: None 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:​ Curt Brauer 
  

 
ALSO PRESENT:              ​ In Person: Alayne Krause, Emily Stewart, and Michelle Sifuentes​

Remote: Rebecca Clarke 
​  

 
Chairman Abler called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM. Michelle Sifuentes certified compliance with 
the open meeting law. The meeting notice was posted on July 18, 2025 at 1:00 PM. 
 
There was no correspondence to present to the Committee.  
 
Supervisor Goehring made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 25, 2025 Executive 
Committee Meeting. Motion seconded by Supervisor Donovan. Motion carried.   
 
The Committee discussed Resolution No. 05 - Approving Standard Intergovernmental Agreement for 
2026 County Sales Tax Revenue Sharing. County Administrator Krause gave an overview of the 
Resolution. Supervisor Procek made a motion to approve the Resolution. Motion seconded by 
Supervisor Donovan. Motion carried. 

County Administrator Alayne Krause began her report by acknowledging the recent passing of 
County Board Member Stanley Lammers. Administrator Krause then provided an update on the 
development of the 2026 budget, noting that the process is well underway. She also informed the 
committee that recruitment efforts for the Finance Director position are still in progress. An update 
was given on the ongoing ERP transition including implementation challenges. Administrator Krause 
commended the Finance Department staff for their hard work during this very busy budget season in 
addition to many ongoing projects. She reported that the Mission, Vision, and Values initiative is 
nearing completion. Administrator Krause announced that the All-Employee Picnic is scheduled for 
September 18, 2025. Lastly, she shared a progress update on the facility assessment that Building 
Services is working with a consultant on. 

There were no requests for approval of attendance at special meetings.   
 
Vouchers were reviewed. Supervisor Goehring made a motion to approve the vouchers. Motion 
seconded by Supervisor Procek. Motion carried. 
 
The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, August 26th at 1:00PM. 
 

 



 

Supervisor Donovan made a motion to adjourn. Motion seconded by Supervisor Procek. Motion 
carried. 
 
 
 
Michelle Sifuentes, Recording Secretary​ ​ William Goehring, Secretary 
 

 



1 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY      ORDINANCE NO. ______ (2025/26)
2
3 Re: Amending Chapter 1 – County Organization and County 
4 Board of Supervisors
5
6
7 WHEREAS, Section 1.14 of the County Code, “Compensation,” is intended to 
8 establish a fair and equitable system of compensation for County Supervisors and 
9 includes a combination of base monthly salary and per diem payments for meeting 

10 attendance; and
11
12 WHEREAS, the present schedule of per diem payments and chairperson 
13 salary when compared to other municipalities does not fairly compensate Supervisors; 
14 and
15
16 WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. § 59.10(1)(c), permits county boards to determine the 
17 method of compensation for supervisors, and it would be appropriate to implement 
18 equitable adjustments to the County Code before the filing deadline for nomination 
19 papers for supervisory candidates for the term commencing April 2026.
20
21 NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of 
22 Sheboygan does ordain as follows:
23
24 Section 1. Amending Code.  Sections 1.14 and 1.16 of the 
25 Sheboygan County Code of Ordinances are hereby amended as follows (only 
26 those Sections or portions of Sections affected appear – deletions indicated by 
27 strikeouts; additions by shading):
28
29 1.14 COMPENSATION. The compensation for County Board 
30 Supervisors shall be reviewed at least every five (5) years by the 
31 Executive Committee. Commencing with the April 2020 2026 
32 term of office, the compensation shall be as follows:
33
34 (2) Per Diem Payments. In consideration for County Board 
35 meetings and Committee service, each Supervisor shall, 
36 in addition to the basic salary, be paid a per diem as 
37 herein provided for each County Board meeting and for 
38 each Committee or Committee-authorized meeting 
39 attended, subject to the following provisions:
40
41 (a) The per diem payment shall be as follows:
42
43 $35.00 40.00 for a meeting lasting up to 4 hours
44 $70.00for a meeting over 4 hours
45



2

46 1.16 VICE CHAIRPERSON'S COMPENSATION. The Vice 
47 Chairperson shall be paid One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) 
48 Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($5,500.00) per year in 
49 addition to the basic compensation and per diem payments in 
50 lieu of the County Supervisor’s basic salary but in addition to per 
51 diem payments provided for in Section 1.14 above.
52
53 Section 2. Effective Date.  The herein Ordinance shall take effect 
54 upon the new County Board term in April of 2026.
55
56
57 Respectfully submitted this 16th day of September 2025.
58
59
60 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
61
62
63
64 Keith Abler, Chairperson Curt Brauer, Vice-Chairperson
65
66
67 William Goehring, Secretary Kathleen Donovan
68
69
70 Edward Procek
71
72 Opposed to Introduction:
73
74
75
76
77 Countersigned by:
78
79
80
81 Keith Abler, Chairperson
82
83
84 C:8443\339373 August 14, 2025, draft



































Liaison Committee Budget Sign Off 2026

Department County Administrator

Liaison Committee Executive Committee

Committee Chair Keith Abler

Targets Set by Finance Committee
Levy $ 410,795
Transfer Out $ 0
Transfer In $ 0
Equity $ 0

Department Budget Requested
Total Revenue $ -410,795 Note: amount should be negative 

Total Expense $ 410,795 Note: amount should be positive

Transfer In $ 0  

Transfer Out $ 0
Equity $ 0  

     Variance $ 0

Note: Variance should be zero = meets budget target; or
          Variance is a negative number = under budget; excess funds

Signatures:

Committee Chair Date

Department Head Date

Note: If the liaison committee supports one or more exceptions to the 
target; a letter of justification and a completed and approved Additional 
Levy Request form must be submitted with this form.  The amounts are 
not to be included in the totals above.



 

 

 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY 
 
Alayne Krause 
County Administrator 
 

 
 
To:​  Members of the Executive Committee 
 
From:  County Administrator Alayne Krause 
 
Date:​  August 26, 2025​
 
Re:​  Proposed 2026 Budget for the County Administrator’s Office 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Enclosed is the proposed 2026 budget for the County Administrator’s Office for your review and 
consideration.   
 
Department Goals - The Office of the County Administrator is responsible for coordinating the 
administrative and management functions of all County departments.  This includes leading the 
annual budget development process, recommending organizational changes, implementing 
policies enacted by the County Board, and assuring fiscal and program accountability of services 
to the taxpayers of Sheboygan County.   
 
Key Performance Measurements - Key performance metrics that the County Administrator’s 
Office revolve around employee engagement, sustainability, and employee professional 
development.  They are discussed in more detail in the performance measures form.  
 
Proposed Budget - The budget proposal balances with the established target of $410,795.  
 
Highlights - The most significant fiscal changes to the budget are:  

●​ Decrease of expenses related to printing and general office supplies. 
●​ Maintaining investment in employee development  
●​ Decrease in Information Technology allocation 
●​ Decrease in computer replacement expense due to replacement technology being 

incorporated into current budget ​
 

There are no capital outlay, furniture, or additional levy requests.  
 
Closing - I have discussed the proposed budget with the County Board Chairman, and I appreciate 
the Executive Committee’s consideration and support.  
 
Thank you.  
 
 

 
 
Telephone  (920) 459-3103 
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Avenue - Room 311 

Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 

 
www.sheboygancounty.com 

 
 



County Administrator's Office

Outputs
2025 2026

Target
Projected 

Actual Target

Metric Employee attendance at all-employee appreciation picnic

5%
275 (2024 

Actual)
284 (2025 

Target)
Importance Indicates the level of engagement of County staff

Target Change in attendance within a given percentage from the prior year

Metric Printing costs

-14% -50% -20%Importance
Focus on sustainability by reducing the number of pages printed and 
encouraging others to rely on electronic documents

Target Change in printing and duplicating budget of -20.0%

Metric Professional growth via continuing educational opportunities 

NA 100% 100%Importance
Facilitate growth and development of employees by empowering them with 
resources for ongoing learning 

Target
Provide professional development training for 100% of office staff in 2026

Metric Net new construction

1.04%
1.41% (2024 

Actual)
1.03%Importance Indicator of health of local economy

Target
Budget for an increase in Net New Construction (NNC) that relies on 5-year 
historical averages



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
1Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

01092��County�Administrator

�400000��Revenues

��410000��Taxes

���411000��Property�Tax�Levy

����411100��Property�Tax�-�Rea 362,884- 395,738- 396,281- 404,455- 404,455- 202,228- 404,455- 410,795- 6,340- 1.57

���411000��Property�Tax�Levy 362,884- 395,738- 396,281- 404,455- 404,455- 202,228- 404,455- 410,795- 6,340- 1.57

��410000��Taxes 362,884- 395,738- 396,281- 404,455- 404,455- 202,228- 404,455- 410,795- 6,340- 1.57

��420000��Intergovernmental�Re

���421000��Federal�Grants

���421000��Federal�Grants 1,113-

��420000��Intergovernmental�Re 1,113-

��460000��Interest�and�Other�R

���466000��Other�Miscellaneous

����466200��Employee�Reimburse

����466200��Employee�Reimburse

���466000��Other�Miscellaneous 170-

��460000��Interest�and�Other�R 170-

��470000��Interdepartmental�Re

���473000��System�Operation�Re

���473000��System�Operation�Re

���476000��Other�Interdepartme

���476000��Other�Interdepartme

��470000��Interdepartmental�Re



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
2Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

�400000��Revenues 364,166- 395,738- 396,281- 404,455- 404,455- 202,228- 404,455- 410,795- 6,340- 1.57

�500000��Expense/Expenditure

��510000��Personnel�Related�Ex

���511000��Wages

����511100��General

�����511105��Regular 248,779 180,709 272,514 306,649 306,649 146,416 267,358 318,254 11,605 3.78

����511100��General 248,779 180,709 272,514 306,649 306,649 146,416 267,358 318,254 11,605 3.78

����511800��Temporary�Help

����511800��Temporary�Help

���511000��Wages 248,779 180,709 272,514 306,649 306,649 146,416 267,358 318,254 11,605 3.78

���512000��Benefits

����512100��General

�����512105��Social�Security 18,129 13,927 20,642 22,470 22,470 11,229 20,504 23,329 859 3.82

�����512110��Retirement�(Emplo 16,409 10,748 18,564 21,104 21,104 10,176 18,582 22,698 1,594 7.55

����512100��General 34,538 24,676 39,206 43,574 43,574 21,405 39,086 46,027 2,453 5.63

����512800��Temporary�Help

����512800��Temporary�Help

���512000��Benefits 34,538 24,676 39,206 43,574 43,574 21,405 39,086 46,027 2,453 5.63

��510000��Personnel�Related�Ex 283,317 205,385 311,720 350,223 350,223 167,821 306,444 364,281 14,058 4.01

��530000��Operating�Expenses

���531000��Purchased�Services

����531100��Professional�Servi

�����531105��Consulting 8,000 43,000 19,400 44,000 8,000- 100.00-

����531100��Professional�Servi 8,000 43,000 19,400 44,000 8,000- 100.00-



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
3Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

����531800��Utilities

�����531840��Telephone�-�Cellu 941 528 928 1,560 1,560 510 1,020 1,071 489- 31.35-

����531800��Utilities 941 528 928 1,560 1,560 510 1,020 1,071 489- 31.35-

���531000��Purchased�Services 941 528 928 9,560 44,560 19,910 45,020 1,071 8,489- 88.80-

���532000��Repair�&�Maintenanc

����532100��Maintenance�Servic

����532100��Maintenance�Servic 4,831

����532200��Maintenance�of�Equ

����532200��Maintenance�of�Equ 533

���532000��Repair�&�Maintenanc 5,364

���533000��General�Operating

����533100��Advertising�and�Pr

����533100��Advertising�and�Pr

����533200��Travel�and�Meals

�����533205��Mileage�-�Employe 240 240 50 100 140- 58.33-

�����533215��Meals�-�Employee 98 84 250 250 58 120 220 30- 12.00-

�����533220��Lodging�-�Employe 1,857 536 2,901 4,243 4,243 1,662 2,943 3,940 303- 7.14-

�����533235��Commercial�Trans. 359 537 1,400 1,400 626 626 1,400

�����533245��Seminars�and�Trai 1,201 1,148 1,904 3,530 3,530 335 1,295 3,545 15 .42

����533200��Travel�and�Meals 3,516 1,684 5,426 9,663 9,663 2,681 5,034 9,205 458- 4.74-

����533300��Dues

�����533305��Membership�Dues 792 1,007 1,082 1,100 1,100 1,115 1,115 1,148 48 4.36

����533300��Dues 792 1,007 1,082 1,100 1,100 1,115 1,115 1,148 48 4.36

����533500��General�Supplies



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
4Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

�����533505��General 373 259 290 578 578 65 300 539 39- 6.75-

����533500��General�Supplies 373 259 290 578 578 65 300 539 39- 6.75-

����533700��Office�Supplies

�����533705��Office 411 499 77 300 300 4 150 300

�����533725��Postage 35 1 46 30 30 20 30

����533700��Office�Supplies 446 501 123 330 330 4 170 330

����533800��Maintenance�Suppli

����533800��Maintenance�Suppli 982

����533870��Books�&�Periodical

�����533875��Subscriptions 302 81 218 198 198 151 198 100 98- 49.49-

����533870��Books�&�Periodical 302 81 218 198 198 151 198 100 98- 49.49-

����533900��Other

�����533928��Computer�Sys�$500 1,664 2,713 122 1,433 1,433 1,214 1,614 100 1,333- 93.02-

�����533951��Employee�Recognit 2,994 2,198 2,362 4,860 4,860 1,372 4,860 2,100 2,760- 56.79-

����533900��Other 4,666 4,911 2,484 6,293 6,293 2,586 6,474 2,200 4,093- 65.04-

���533000��General�Operating 11,077 8,442 9,623 18,162 18,162 6,602 13,291 13,522 4,640- 25.55-

���534000��Fixed�Charges

����534100��Rentals

�����534115��Rental�of�Equipme 21 500 500 50 100 400- 80.00-

����534100��Rentals 21 500 500 50 100 400- 80.00-

����534200��Insurance

����534200��Insurance

���534000��Fixed�Charges 21 500 500 50 100 400- 80.00-

��530000��Operating�Expenses 17,403 8,970 10,550 28,222 63,222 26,512 58,361 14,693 13,529- 47.94-



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
5Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

��550000��Interdepartmental�Ch

���551000��Employee�Related�In

����551100��Benefits�-�General

�����551105��Health�Insurance 25,343 11,366 10,833 11,093 11,093 6,635 12,416 17,208 6,115 55.12

�����551110��Dental�Insurance 486 25 25 50 130 130

�����551115��Group�Life�Insura 139 101 147 169 169 83 169 177 8 4.73

�����551125��Worker�Compensati 263 142 542 207 207 101 207 218 11 5.31

����551100��Benefits�-�General 26,231 11,634 11,522 11,469 11,469 6,844 12,842 17,733 6,264 54.62

���551000��Employee�Related�In 26,231 11,634 11,522 11,469 11,469 6,844 12,842 17,733 6,264 54.62

���551900��Insurance�Charges

����551905��General�Liability 590 662 686 734 734 367 734 685 49- 6.68-

����551915��Auto�Insurance

����551915��Auto�Insurance

����551920��Property�Insurance 295 319 325 349 349 175 349 337 12- 3.44-

����551930��Deductible�Escrow 86 103 124 103 103 52 103 101 2- 1.94-

���551900��Insurance�Charges 971 1,084 1,135 1,186 1,186 593 1,186 1,123 63- 5.31-

���552000��Repairs�&�Maint�Cha

����552100��Repairs�&�Maint�Ch

����552100��Repairs�&�Maint�Ch 248

���552000��Repairs�&�Maint�Cha 248

���553000��System�Operation�Ch

����553100��System�Operation�C

�����553105��Telephone 378 320 362 350 350 175 350 424 74 21.14

�����553135��Printing�&�Duplic 795 625 1,414 300 300 316 150 250 50- 16.67-

�����553150��Data�Processing�S 10,278 10,116 15,281 12,705 12,705 6,353 12,705 12,291 414- 3.26-

����553100��System�Operation�C 11,451 11,061 17,057 13,355 13,355 6,844 13,205 12,965 390- 2.92-



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
6Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

���553000��System�Operation�Ch 11,451 11,061 17,057 13,355 13,355 6,844 13,205 12,965 390- 2.92-

���556000��Other�Interdepartme

����556100��Other�Interdepartm

����556100��Other�Interdepartm 2,495

���556000��Other�Interdepartme 2,495

��550000��Interdepartmental�Ch 41,397 23,779 29,714 26,010 26,010 14,281 27,233 31,821 5,811 22.34

��570000��Depreciation

���575000��Machinery�&�Equip�D

���575000��Machinery�&�Equip�D

��570000��Depreciation

��580000��Debt�Service

���582000��Interest

���582000��Interest

��580000��Debt�Service

�500000��Expense/Expenditure 342,117 238,134 351,984 404,455 439,455 208,614 392,038 410,795 6,340 1.57

�600000��Other�Financing�Sourc

��630000��Opt'g�Transfers�from

��630000��Opt'g�Transfers�from 11,308-

�600000��Other�Financing�Sourc 11,308-

�700000��Other�Financing�Uses

��720000��Transfer�to�Other�Fu

���726000��Oper'tg�Transf�to�I



R551476 10:14:587/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
7Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

���726000��Oper'tg�Transf�to�I

��720000��Transfer�to�Other�Fu

�700000��Other�Financing�Uses

Subtotal 33,357- 157,604- 44,297- 35,000 6,386 12,417-

�800000��Net�Position

��820000��Fund�Balance

���820125��Use�of�FB�for�Subse 35,000- 35,000-

��820000��Fund�Balance 35,000- 35,000-

�800000��Net�Position 35,000- 35,000-

01092��County�Administrator 33,357- 157,604- 44,297- 6,386 47,417-

Current�Change�in�Fund�Balance 33,357- 157,604- 44,297- 6,386 47,417-



Sheboygan County Table of Organization

Executive Committee
 

Special Notes

-Chapter 2 Rules of Order – Committee Structure
-The Executive Committee membership includes County Board 
Chairman, County Board Vice-Chairman and three members 
elected by the County Board.
-Every County Board Supervisor is assigned a minimum of one committee.
-The County Board Chair makes all Committee assignments with the support of
the Executive Committee and subject to confirmation of the County Board.

County Administrator
 

Finance Committee
 

Finance
County Clerk
Information 
Technology

Treasurer/Real 
Property

 

Human Resources 
Committee

 

Human Resources
Corporation 

Counsel
 

Health & Human 
Services 

Committee
 

Health & Human 
Services

Veterans Services

 

Planning, 
Resources, Ag & 
Extension Comm.

 

Planning & 
Conservation
UW-Extension 

Register of Deeds
 

Transportation 
Committee

 

 

Law Committee
 

Sheriff
Clerk of Courts
District Attorney

Medical Examiner
Family Court 

 

Property 
Committee

 

Building Services
UW-Green Bay, 

Sheboygan 
Campus

 

Health Care Center 
Committee

 

Rocky Knoll HCC
 

County Board
 

Deputy Administrator,
Department Heads, and 
Administrative Assistant

 

2025

Transportation
       Highway

Airport
Lake Breeze



2026 Travel and Training Requests

Department: _______________________________County Administrator

Date Request Location    (if 
known)

Number of 
Employees 
Attending

Employee 
Mileage 
533205**

Employee 
Meals 
533215

Employee 
Lodging 
533220

Commercial 
Transport    

533235

Seminars 
and 

Training 
533245

Total Cost 
per request 

Requirement for 
Accreditation or 

Certification?
Out of County 

Yes/No

February WCA Legislative Conference* Madison 2 ( 50.00)        ( -  )            ( 670.00)      ( 350.00)      ( 1,070.00)    No Yes
February NACo Legislative Conference** Washington DC 1 ( 110.00)      ( 1,300.00)   ( 700.00)       ( 575.00)      ( 2,685.00)    No Yes

September WCA Annual Conference* Wisconsin Dells 2 ( 50.00)        ( -  )            ( 670.00)      ( 380.00)      ( 1,100.00)    No Yes
October ICMA Annual Conference*** California 1 ( 110.00)      ( 1,300.00)   ( 700.00)       ( 840.00)      ( 2,950.00)    No Yes

2026
Misc Professional Development 

Training 3 ( 1,400.00)   ( 1,400.00)    No Unknown

( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            

Object 
Account 

Total
( 100.00)      ( 220.00)      ( 3,940.00)   ( 1,400.00)    ( 3,545.00)   ( 9,205.00)   

*WCA = Wisconsin Counties Association

**NACo = National Counties Association

***ICMA = International County Managers Association Grand Total ( 9,205.00)   

**2024 Employee Mileage Reimbursement Rate                                                                                    $.51 
with proof of personal auto insurance on file with Accounts Payable                                                                                                                                
$.26 with no proof of insurance, or partial coverage, on file with Accounts Payable

Grand Total amount above should match the subtotal on the Proposed Variance Report



EQUIPMENT REQUEST FOR 2026-- COMPUTER AND SOFTWARE ONLY  
Listed in Order of Priority Account to use: 533928

 
 

 for Computer System/Eq from $500 thru $4999

1093.533928
Microsoft Excel Software (1 license at
$100/year per license) $ 100.00 $ -  

$ -   $ -  
$ -   $ -  

When requesting printers please indicate all the features needed for that unit:  

IT Division Approval Requesting Department Head Signature

Department: 

Account No:  533928
TOTAL COST REIMBURSEMENT  REPLACE

ACCOUNT NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION OF ITEM(S) AMOUNT A  /  R JUSTIFICATION INDIVIDUAL ASSET

County Administrator's Office

RETURN TO CHRIS LEWINSKI, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR

Grand Total Amounts $ 100.00 $ -  

NOTE:

Alayne Krause



Liaison Committee Budget Sign Off 2026

Department County Board

Liaison Committee Executive

Committee Chair Keith Abler

Targets Set by Finance Committee
Levy $ 264,785
Transfer Out $ 0
Transfer In $ 0
Equity $ 0

Department Budget Requested
Total Revenue $ -264,785 Note: amount should be negative 

Total Expense $ 264,785 Note: amount should be positive

Transfer In $ 0  

Transfer Out $ 0
Equity $ 0  

     Variance $ 0

Note: Variance should be zero = meets budget target; or
          Variance is a negative number = under budget; excess funds

Signatures:

Committee Chair Date

Department Head Date

Note: If the liaison committee supports one or more exceptions to the 
target; a letter of justification and a completed and approved Additional 
Levy Request form must be submitted with this form.  The amounts are 
not to be included in the totals above.



 

 

 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY 
 
Keith Abler 
County Board Chairman 
 

 
 
To:​  Members of the Executiv Committee 
 
From:  County Board Chairman Keith Abler KA 
 
Date:​  August 26, 2025 
 
Re:​  Proposed 2026 Budget for the County Board 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Enclosed is the proposed 2026 budget for the County Board for your review and consideration.   
 
Department Goals - Sheboygan County is governed by a 25-member County Board of 
Supervisors elected by district to set policy and provide direction.  Sheboygan County’s mission 
is to provide courteous, responsive, efficient and effective services to those we serve.   
 
Proposed Budget - The budget proposal balances with the established target of $264,785.  
 
Highlights -  
●​ Increase to Information Technology allocation.   
●​ Continued support for attendance at Wisconsin Counties Association conference for twelve 

County Board members 
●​ Increase to per diem payments and Vice Chair compensation  
 
There are no capital outlay, furniture, or additional levy requests.  
 
Closing - I want to thank and acknowledge County Administrator Alayne Krause for her work 
preparing the County Board budget. We have discussed the proposed budget with the Finance 
Department, and appreciate the Executive Committee’s consideration and support. 
 
Thank you.  
 

 
 
Telephone  (920) 459-3103 
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Avenue - Room 311 

Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 

 
Keith.Abler@SheboyganCounty.com 

 
 



R551476 10:14:057/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
1Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

00186��County�Board

�400000��Revenues

��410000��Taxes

���411000��Property�Tax�Levy

����411100��Property�Tax�-�Rea 235,479- 230,280- 246,921- 248,781- 248,781- 124,392- 248,781- 264,785- 16,004- 6.43

���411000��Property�Tax�Levy 235,479- 230,280- 246,921- 248,781- 248,781- 124,392- 248,781- 264,785- 16,004- 6.43

��410000��Taxes 235,479- 230,280- 246,921- 248,781- 248,781- 124,392- 248,781- 264,785- 16,004- 6.43

��460000��Interest�and�Other�R

���466000��Other�Miscellaneous

����466125��Miscellaneous�Reim 1,032- 5,161-

����466200��Employee�Reimburse

����466200��Employee�Reimburse

���466000��Other�Miscellaneous 1,032- 5,161-

��460000��Interest�and�Other�R 1,032- 5,161-

��470000��Interdepartmental�Re

���473000��System�Operation�Re

���473000��System�Operation�Re

���476000��Other�Interdepartme

���476000��Other�Interdepartme

��470000��Interdepartmental�Re

�400000��Revenues 236,511- 235,441- 246,921- 248,781- 248,781- 124,392- 248,781- 264,785- 16,004- 6.43

�500000��Expense/Expenditure

��510000��Personnel�Related�Ex

���511000��Wages



R551476 10:14:057/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
2Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

����511100��General

�����511105��Regular 129,196 128,436 127,921 137,042 137,042 57,382 115,000 143,906 6,864 5.01

����511100��General 129,196 128,436 127,921 137,042 137,042 57,382 115,000 143,906 6,864 5.01

����511800��Temporary�Help

����511800��Temporary�Help

���511000��Wages 129,196 128,436 127,921 137,042 137,042 57,382 115,000 143,906 6,864 5.01

���512000��Benefits

����512100��General

�����512105��Social�Security 9,460 9,414 9,373 10,152 10,152 4,166 8,200 10,643 491 4.84

�����512110��Retirement�(Emplo 1,706 1,496 1,500 2,099 2,099 537 1,500 2,580 481 22.92

����512100��General 11,166 10,911 10,873 12,251 12,251 4,704 9,700 13,223 972 7.93

���512000��Benefits 11,166 10,911 10,873 12,251 12,251 4,704 9,700 13,223 972 7.93

��510000��Personnel�Related�Ex 140,362 139,347 138,793 149,293 149,293 62,086 124,700 157,129 7,836 5.25

��530000��Operating�Expenses

���531000��Purchased�Services

����531800��Utilities

����531800��Utilities

���531000��Purchased�Services

���532000��Repair�&�Maintenanc

����532200��Maintenance�of�Equ

����532200��Maintenance�of�Equ

���532000��Repair�&�Maintenanc

���533000��General�Operating

����533100��Advertising�and�Pr



R551476 10:14:057/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
3Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

�����533110��Printing 17 87

����533100��Advertising�and�Pr 13,230 87

����533200��Travel�and�Meals

�����533205��Mileage�-�Employe 12,554 14,213 13,943 15,400 15,400 5,801 15,000 15,400

�����533215��Meals�-�Employee 50 56 34 100 100 62 90 100

�����533220��Lodging�-�Employe 3,137 3,096 4,860 5,024 5,024 4,800 5,024 6,620 1,596 31.77

�����533235��Commercial�Trans. 85 55 121 400 400 735 735 700 300 75.00

�����533245��Seminars�and�Trai 2,761 2,710 2,450 3,730 3,730 2,760 3,500 4,005 275 7.37

����533200��Travel�and�Meals 18,586 20,130 21,409 24,654 24,654 14,159 24,349 26,825 2,171 8.81

����533300��Dues

�����533305��Membership�Dues 16,387 16,387 16,387 16,438 16,438 16,438 16,438 16,602 164 1.00

����533300��Dues 16,387 16,387 16,387 16,438 16,438 16,438 16,438 16,602 164 1.00

����533500��General�Supplies

�����533505��General 1,590 1,720 1,938 1,814 1,814 1,353 1,500 1,739 75- 4.13-

����533500��General�Supplies 1,590 1,720 1,938 1,814 1,814 1,353 1,500 1,739 75- 4.13-

����533700��Office�Supplies

�����533705��Office 82 18 150 150 35 65 85- 56.67-

�����533725��Postage 12 3 12 25 25 25 15 10- 40.00-

����533700��Office�Supplies 94 3 30 175 175 60 80 95- 54.29-

����533870��Books�&�Periodical

����533870��Books�&�Periodical

����533900��Other

����533900��Other

���533000��General�Operating 49,887 38,327 39,764 43,081 43,081 31,950 42,347 45,246 2,165 5.03

���534000��Fixed�Charges



R551476 10:14:057/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
4Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

����534100��Rentals

����534100��Rentals 5

���534000��Fixed�Charges 5

��530000��Operating�Expenses 49,892 38,327 39,764 43,081 43,081 31,950 42,347 45,246 2,165 5.03

��550000��Interdepartmental�Ch

���551000��Employee�Related�In

����551100��Benefits�-�General

�����551105��Health�Insurance 776 1,035 2,070 5,736 5,736

�����551110��Dental�Insurance 23 24 48 130 130

�����551115��Group�Life�Insura 72 72 72 71 71 32 62 70 1- 1.41-

�����551125��Worker�Compensati 102 105 85 99 99 37 72 99

����551100��Benefits�-�General 974 177 157 170 170 1,127 2,252 6,035 5,865 3,450.00

���551000��Employee�Related�In 974 177 157 170 170 1,127 2,252 6,035 5,865 3,450.00

���551900��Insurance�Charges

����551905��General�Liability 413 396 410 439 439 220 439 421 18- 4.10-

����551920��Property�Insurance 1,644 1,744 1,777 1,911 1,911 956 1,911 1,849 62- 3.24-

����551930��Deductible�Escrow 58 61 73 61 61 31 61 62 1 1.64

���551900��Insurance�Charges 2,115 2,201 2,260 2,411 2,411 1,206 2,411 2,332 79- 3.28-

���552000��Repairs�&�Maint�Cha

����552100��Repairs�&�Maint�Ch

����552100��Repairs�&�Maint�Ch

���552000��Repairs�&�Maint�Cha

���553000��System�Operation�Ch

����553100��System�Operation�C

�����553105��Telephone 378 320 362 350 350 175 350 350- 100.00-



R551476 10:14:057/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
5Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

�����553115��Telephone�-�Long 1 1 1 1 1 1

�����553135��Printing�&�Duplic 517 561 34 700 700 600 550 150- 21.43-

�����553150��Data�Processing�S 34,861 33,012 48,902 52,775 52,775 26,387 52,775 53,492 717 1.36

����553100��System�Operation�C 35,757 33,894 49,298 53,826 53,826 26,562 53,726 54,043 217 .40

���553000��System�Operation�Ch 35,757 33,894 49,298 53,826 53,826 26,562 53,726 54,043 217 .40

���556000��Other�Interdepartme

����556100��Other�Interdepartm

����556100��Other�Interdepartm

���556000��Other�Interdepartme

��550000��Interdepartmental�Ch 38,846 36,272 51,715 56,407 56,407 28,895 58,389 62,410 6,003 10.64

��560000��Capital�Outlay

���566000��Office�Furniture�&

���566000��Office�Furniture�&

��560000��Capital�Outlay

��570000��Depreciation

���575000��Machinery�&�Equip�D

���575000��Machinery�&�Equip�D

��570000��Depreciation

��580000��Debt�Service

���582000��Interest

���582000��Interest

��580000��Debt�Service

�500000��Expense/Expenditure 229,101 213,946 230,272 248,781 248,781 122,931 225,436 264,785 16,004 6.43



R551476 10:14:057/29/2025County�of�Sheboygan
6Page�-

Proposed�Budget�-�Variance�ReportSC0002

For�2026County�Department�Level�7�w/o�CP

Description 5-Yr�Average

2020-2024

Actual

Annual�2023

Actual

Annual�2024

Board

Adopted�2025

Amended

Budget�2025

Current�Year

At�June�30th

Current�Year

Projection

Dept�Budget

Request�2026

$�Variance�To

2025�Budget

%�Chge�To

2025�Bdgt

�600000��Other�Financing�Sourc

��630000��Opt'g�Transfers�from

��630000��Opt'g�Transfers�from 12,600-

�600000��Other�Financing�Sourc 12,600-

�700000��Other�Financing�Uses

��720000��Transfer�to�Other�Fu

���726000��Oper'tg�Transf�to�I

���726000��Oper'tg�Transf�to�I

��720000��Transfer�to�Other�Fu

�700000��Other�Financing�Uses

Subtotal 20,010- 21,495- 16,649- 1,461- 23,345-

�800000��Net�Position

��820000��Fund�Balance

��820000��Fund�Balance

�800000��Net�Position

00186��County�Board 20,010- 21,495- 16,649- 1,461- 23,345-

Current�Change�in�Fund�Balance 20,011- 21,495- 16,649- 1,461- 23,345-



Sheboygan County Table of Organization

Executive Committee
 

Special Notes

-Chapter 2 Rules of Order – Committee Structure
-The Executive Committee membership includes County Board 
Chairman, County Board Vice-Chairman and three members 
elected by the County Board.
-Every County Board Supervisor is assigned a minimum of one committee.
-The County Board Chair makes all Committee assignments with the support of
the Executive Committee and subject to confirmation of the County Board.

County Administrator
 

Finance Committee
 

Finance
County Clerk
Information 
Technology

Treasurer/Real 
Property

 

Human Resources 
Committee

 

Human Resources
Corporation 

Counsel
 

Health & Human 
Services 

Committee
 

Health & Human 
Services

Veterans Services

 

Planning, 
Resources, Ag & 
Extension Comm.

 

Planning & 
Conservation
UW-Extension 

Register of Deeds
 

Transportation 
Committee

 

 

Law Committee
 

Sheriff
Clerk of Courts
District Attorney

Medical Examiner
Family Court 

 

Property 
Committee

 

Building Services
UW-Green Bay, 

Sheboygan 
Campus

 

Health Care Center 
Committee

 

Rocky Knoll HCC
 

County Board
 

Deputy Administrator,
Department Heads, and 
Administrative Assistant

 

2025

Transportation
       Highway

Airport
Lake Breeze



2026 Travel and Training Requests

Department: _______________________________County Board

Date Request Location    (if 
known)

Number of 
Employees 
Attending

Employee 
Mileage 
533205**

Employee 
Meals 
533215

Employee 
Lodging 
533220

Commercial 
Transport    

533235

Seminars 
and 

Training 
533245

Total Cost 
per request 

Requirement for 
Accreditation or 

Certification?
Out of County 

Yes/No

February WCA Legislative Conference* Madison 2 ( -  )            ( 670.00)      ( 350.00)      ( 1,020.00)    No Yes
February NACo Legislative Conference** Washington DC 1 ( 100.00)      ( 1,450.00)   ( 700.00)       ( 575.00)      ( 2,825.00)    No Yes

September WCA Annual Conference* Wisconsin Dells 12 ( -  )            ( 4,500.00)   ( 2,480.00)   ( 6,980.00)    No Yes

June Leadership Forum 25 ( 600.00)      ( 600.00)       No No

2026 Meetings 25 ( 15,400.00) ( 15,400.00)  No Unknown
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            
( -  )            

Object 
Account 

Total
( 15,400.00) ( 100.00)      ( 6,620.00)   ( 700.00)       ( 4,005.00)   ( 26,825.00) 

*WCA = Wisconsin Counties Association

**NACo = National Counties Association

**2024 Employee Mileage Reimbursement Rate                                                                                    $.51 
with proof of personal auto insurance on file with Accounts Payable                                                                                                                                
$.26 with no proof of insurance, or partial coverage, on file with Accounts Payable

Grand Total amount above should match the subtotal on the Proposed Variance Report



VARIANCE REPORT FOR DEPARTMENT -- COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
FOR THE QUARTER ENDING 06/30/2025

TIM
ING

G/L CATEGORY
 VARIANCE FROM 

BUDGET EXPLANATION OF VARIANCE

Personnel Related Expenditure
Wages 5,739.37                  Partial year vacancy in position that is expensed 50% towards County 

Administrator's Office budget.

Operating Expenses
Purchased Services 19,871.00                Invoices not yet received for consulting work.

General Operating 4,694.44                  Out-of-state conference not being attended, less general supplies 
purchased than budgeted, lower recognition items purchased than 
budgeted.

Interdepartmental Charges
Employee Related Insurance (1,109.00)                 Partial year of health insurance election not budgeted for.

Variances Less Than Justification Threshold 299.68                     

TOTAL 29,495.49                Positive



VARIANCE REPORT FOR DEPARTMENT -- COUNTY BOARD
FOR THE QUARTER ENDING 06/30/2025

TIM
ING

G/L CATEGORY
 VARIANCE FROM 

BUDGET EXPLANATION OF VARIANCE

Personnel Related Expenditure
Wages 10,799.04                Fewer per diems requested than budgeted, partial year vacancy in position 

that is expensed 50% to County Board budget.

Benefits 1,373.32                  Savings associated with partial year vacancy.

Interdepartmental Charges
Employee Related Insurance (1,041.93)                 Partial year of health insurance election not budgeted for.

Variances Less Than Justification Threshold (377.35)                    

TOTAL 10,753.08                Positive


	August Executive Committee Agenda Packet
	AUGUST Executive Committee Meeting Agenda
	NOTICE OF MEETING 

	Ord-Amending Ch. 1-County Organization and County Board of Supervisors
	Resolution No. 8 Delegating Authority to Enter into Settlement Agreements with Opioid Defendants...
	Reolution No. 9 2026 Five Year Capital Plan
	Resolution No. 10 Supporting the Establishment of an Agricultural Enterprise Area with the Town of Plymouth
	Ordinance No. 9 Amending Section 1.17 of the Sheboygan County Code- Updating Sheboygan County's Mission, Vision and Core Values
	1092. Budget Packet Executive - County Administrator
	186. County Board Budget Pack